
 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                           

MEETING AGENDA 

PLAN COMMISSION 
Wednesday, June 14, 2017 

7:30 P.M. 
MEMORIAL HALL – MEMORIAL BUILDING 

(Tentative & Subject to Change) 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  

 
2. MINUTES - Minutes of May 10, 2017 

 
3. FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

a)  Case A-16-2017 – 100 S. Garfield Ave. – CCSD 181/Village of Hinsdale – Major 
Adjustment to a Site Plan/Exterior Appearance Plan to add a Parking Deck for a new 
Hinsdale Middle School. 

b)  Case A-07-2017 – Village of Hinsdale – Text Amendment to Section 9-104 of the 
Hinsdale Zoning Code as it relates to Regulation of the Location of Secondary Access 
Drives to Commercial Properties. 

c)  Case A-08-2017 – Village of Hinsdale – Text Amendment to Section 5-105(C) to allow 
Educational Services with a Special Use Permit in the B-2 Central Business District (but 
not on the first floor of any structure in the B-2) and B-3 General Business District. 

 
4. SIGN PERMIT REVIEW  

       a) Case A-19-2017 – 12 E. First St. – EFP Opticians – Wall and Window Sign (window sign 
retroactive) application in the Historic Downtown District. 

          b) Case A-20-2017 – 500 Chestnut St. – Huntington Bank – 1 ATM Wall Sign application. 
 
5. PUBLIC HEARING - All those wishing to provide public testimony must be sworn in and after 

the applicant makes their presentation will be recognized by the Chair to speak. 
a)  Case A-14-2017 – Shred415 Hinsdale, LLC – Special Use Permit Amendment to change 

current First Class time from 6 AM to 5 AM.  
 

6.  EXTERIOR APPEARANCE AND SITE PLAN REVIEW 
     a)  Case A-40-2016 – 722-724 N. York Rd. – Hinsdale Animal Hospital – Exterior 

Appearance/Site Plan review for new Pet Hospital in the B-1 Community Business 
District (in relation to the approved Text Amendment and Special Use Permit on 
03/07/17 per O2017-10 and O2017-11, respectively). 

 
7.   ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Village of Hinsdale is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain 
accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who 
have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities, are requested to 
contact Darrell Langlois, ADA Coordinator at 630.789-7014 or by TDD at 789-7022 promptly to 
allow the Village of Hinsdale to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.  Web 
Site:  www.villageofhinsdale.org  

http://www.villageofhinsdale.org/


 

MINUTES 

VILLAGE OF HINSDALE 

PLAN COMMISSION 

MAY 10, 2017 

MEMORIAL HALL 

7:30 P.M. 

 

Chairman Cashman called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m., Wednesday, April 12, 2017, in 

Memorial Hall, the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois.   

 

PRESENT: Chairman Cashman, Commissioner Peterson, Commissioner Willobee, 

Commissioner Fiascone, Commissioner Crnovich, Commissioner Mc 

Mahon, Commissioner  Braselton 

 

ABSENT: Commissioner Krillenberger, Commissioner Unell  

 

ALSO PRESENT: Kathleen Gargano, Village Manager; Robb McGinnis, Director of 

Community Development: Chan Yu, Village Planner: 

 Applicant Representatives for Case: A-07-17, A-08-17, A-16-17, A-17-17, 

and A-18-17 

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

Approval of Minutes 
 

Chairman Cashman asked for comments on April 12
th

 meeting minutes, no concerns were shared & 

Chairman Cashman motioned to approve the minutes.  Commissioner Crnovich motioned & Commissioner 

Willobee seconded, the motion was unanimously approved (5-0, 2 absent, 2 abstained).   

 

Sign Permit Review - CaseA-17-2017 – 12 E. Hinsdale Ave. – Hinsdale Wine shop – Projecting 

Sign Permit application in the Historic Downtown District.  The owner of Hinsdale Wine Shop requested 

a blade sign to be viewed from the sidewalk.  The PC, with no issues with the request, unanimously 

approved the projecting sign as submitted, 7-0 (2 absent). 

 

 

Sign Permit Review - Case A-18-2017 – 8 W. Hinsdale Avenue – County Line Audio Video – 3 Wall 

Sign Permit applications in the Historic Downtown District.  Chan Yu shared the HPC had some clutter 

concerns with the sign design submitted & interpreted the third sign as an “Advertising Sign” versus a 

“Business Sign”.  The applicant gave a brief description of the sign design to the PC and agreed to remove 

the “ad” words on the right side of the sign.  The PC agreed with the interpretation and suggestions of the 

HPC.  In lieu of the third sign, the applicant will apply for a projecting sign, an idea recommended by the 

Historic Preservation Commission and PC. 
 

With no questions, the PC unanimously approved the two wall signs, “County Line” at 10 inches and 

“Audio Video Solutions” at 6”, 7-0 (2 absent). 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Approved 
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Major Adjustment to Exterior Appearance/Site Plan - Case  A-16-2017 – 100 S. Garfield Ave. – CCSD 

181/Village of Hinsdale – Major Adjustment to a Site Plan/Exterior Appearance Plan to add a Parking 

Deck for a new Hinsdale Middle School (HMS).  Representatives for the Hinsdale Middle School and 

Village of Hinsdale presented the joint application to the PC to add a parking deck in lieu of (only) a surface 

parking lot for the HMS.  Village Manager Kathleen Gargano introduced 3 areas of the parking deck to be 

considered, the stairwell configuration, the landscape on the north side, and location of ADA parking spaces 

on the east side to allow for an exit onto Garfield.  The project architect gave a brief description of the deck 

structure noting 2 levels containing a total of 319 parking spaces with 2 access stairwells and materials and 

lighting matching that of the new middle school.   

 

Another design professional described the landscape features of the deck to include raised planters, interior 

and exit islands containing ground cover, a perimeter containing Arborvitae to screen columns, and canopy 

trees in the parkway.  The PC was presented with option A and option B landscape design to be used on the 

north side of the deck (to screen or not screen).  Differences in the options would impact natural lighting of 

the deck and visual security.  The PC, in general, preferred the landscape screening option B (along 2
nd

 St.) 

for the “openness” feeling it provided.   The two access points and their traffic patterns were briefly 

described, as well as the code compliance of the light poles.  The stair tower was described as having a 

height of 24-26 feet, and 14 x 24 foot dimensions had previous concerns of being bulky.  The tower has 

physical limitations for risers or stairs to meet code.  Also, if materials of pre-cast was changed it would no 

longer match the materials used in the middle school, especially the entry components.  It was determined to 

have the stair design to be enclosed to protect the materials from the elements.  The designers agreed to 

provide a rendering of the stair tower containing red brick elements and planter boxes for the board to 

consider.  Without any further concerns, the PC, unanimously approved the Major Adjustment request, as 

submitted, 6-0 (2 absent, 1 abstained). 

 
 
Public Hearing - Case  A-07-2017 –  Village of Hinsdale – Text Amendment to Section 9-104 of the 

Hinsdale Zoning Code as it relates to Regulation of the Location of Secondary Access Drives to 

Commercial Properties.  The applicant, Chan Yu explained the need for the text amendment arose from a 

previous request to have a secondary access from a commercial property.  Due to the large amount of 

concerned residents citing safety concerns, the village wanted to take action to prevent future requests.  The 

PC expressed full support for the application.  The PC, with no questions, unanimously approved the Text 

Amendment application as submitted, 7-0 (2 absent). 

(Please see the attached transcript for Case A-07-2017 included as part of this record, Attachment 1) 

Schedule of Public Hearing – Case A-08-2017 – Village of Hinsdale –  Text Amendment to Section 5-

105(C) to allow Educational Services with a Special Use Permit in the B-2 Central Business District 

(but not on the first floor of any structure in the B-2) and B-3 General Business District.  Chan Yu, the 

applicant, explained the request was from the Village but recommended by the Board, for the need of the 

zoning code to be very specific.  The text amendment would provide flexibility yet prevent unintended 

consequences through the review process of the special use permit.  The PC expressed full support for the 

application.  The PC, with no questions, unanimously approved the Text Amendment application as 

submitted, 7-0 (2 absent). 

(Please see the attached transcript for Case A-08-2017 included as part of this record, Attachment 2) 
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Schedule of Public Hearing –  Case  A-14-2017 – Village of Hinsdale –  Shred415 Hinsdale, LLC – 

Special Use Permit Amendment to change current First Class time from 6 AM to 5 AM.  The PC 

scheduled a public hearing for Case A-14-2017 for the June 14, 2017, PC meeting. 

 
*Update Only* Not on Agenda– Sign Permit Review -   Case A-13-2017 – 25 W. Chicago Avenue – 

Baird & Warner – Sign Permit application to re-face a legal nonconforming Ground Sign. 

 
Chan reviewed to the PC that the applicant has not submitted an updated wall sign or Code compliant ground 

sign, as recommended by the PC.  Therefore, the item will be continued for the next PC meeting 

 

Adjournment 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:33 PM, after a unanimous vote.    

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jennifer Spires, Community Development Secretary  
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
            ) ss:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION

In the Matter of:          )
                           )
                           )
Text Amendment to          )
Section 9-104,             )
Case No. A-07-2017.       )

         REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony

taken at the hearing of the above-entitled

matter before the Hinsdale Plan Commission, at

19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on

May 10, 2017, at the hour of 7:30 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;

         MS. LAURIE McMAHON, Member;

         MS. DEBRA BRASELTON, Member;

         MS. ANNA FIASCONE, Member;

         MR. SCOTT PETERSON, Member;

         MS. JULIE CRNOVICH, Member; and

         MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member.
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     ALSO PRESENT:1

         MR. ROBB McGINNIS, Director of      2

             Community Development;

3

         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner and    

             Petitioner.4

________________________________________________

5

         CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Case A-07-2017, 6

village of Hinsdale text amendment to 7

Section 9-104 of the Hinsdale Zoning Code as it 8

relates to regulations of the location of 9

secondary access drives to commercial 08:20:14PM 10

properties. 11

              Robb, are you the applicant?  Who's 12

the applicant tonight?  13

MR. YU:  I am.  Chan Yu, village 14

planner.15

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Is there anyone else 16

here to speak on this matter?  17

(No response.) 18

                  (WHEREUPON, Mr. Chan Yu was 19

                   administered the oath.)08:21:06PM 20

MR. YU:  This is a public meeting on 21

Case A-15-2016.  Another applicant had applied 22

3

for exterior appearance site plan review on 1

their property to break through their fence and 2

create a secondary access.  This is a commercial 3

office building using their land to cut through 4

and create a secondary access into a residential 5

district.6

And at the meeting, this was 7

July 13, 2016, there was a lot of neighborhood 8

residents present at the meeting and they really 9

reflected a lot of concerns and it was really 08:21:50PM 10

just opposed to this for a lot of obvious safety 11

reasons.  12

And one of the questions by a 13

resident was is there any way for the village to 14

do anything to prevent this request coming 15

before the plan commission again because per the 16

code, an applicant could reapply every two years 17

even if it's denied.  18

So based on that, and based on the 19

concerns by the public meeting, the village is 08:22:22PM 20

applying to not allow and to prohibit secondary 21

access from commercially-zoned property to 22

4

residentially-zoned districts is the request.  1

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Any questions for 2

the applicant?3

One thing I remember from that 4

meeting, I thought it was interesting that we 5

had people that were pretty much outraged about 6

the concept of cutting through to Fuller on the 7

block to the west of York Road.  We also had 8

people further down towards County Line and all 9

along Fuller.  08:22:58PM 10

And I know the village has been 11

working with Land Rover to develop the General 12

Motors property and that has access off a 13

residential cul-de-sac.  I used to take a 14

go-cart through there as a kid back in the day, 15

and I'm pretty sure it's still there.  16

So I think this is a good move 17

because Number 1, this would have been a real 18

problem in this location, and then who knows if 19

there's other situations like this where there's 08:23:28PM 20

commercial properties that back up and I liked 21

how you actually excluded schools and parks and 22

5

other uses that would not be the same.  1

Ironically, I was in the building 2

120 Ogden today and mentioned the fact that this 3

was coming up and the person I was speaking to 4

was talking about safety concerns, that there 5

was an accident leaving there and that now they 6

are using that cut through, that there was an 7

agreement between Koplin and whoever the other 8

property owner was.  The barricades have gone 9

down and now they are cutting through to York 08:24:06PM 10

Road, which I still might think might be a 11

village issue to consider but at least they are 12

not going through to a commercial property to a 13

main road not a residential street.  14

I think this is a great idea.  I'm 15

glad you remembered this and did this.  It would 16

probably come up when Land Rover comes to us 17

because they are on Oak and Ogden and I can't 18

think of what the street is that dead ends back 19

there.  08:24:44PM 20

MS. CRNOVICH:  It's a wonderful idea, 21

and I echo everything that you just stated.  22

05/10/17 PC Minutes - Attachment 1



3 of 5 sheets KATHLEEN W. BONO, CSR 630-834-7779

6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  These neighbors they 1

were upset.  Rightfully so.  It would have 2

totally changed that block of Fuller.  I don't 3

know if this is still going on.  I thought Brad 4

was going to study that was the cut-through 5

traffic that people were taking going down 6

Fuller to County Line to get back on to Ogden.  7

MR. McGINNIS:  I know that's still in 8

play.  9

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  And now that that 08:25:20PM 10

pass-through is reopen, people, I'm sure, are 11

going out at 120 to York Road heading south, 12

then heading over to County Line or Oak and then 13

back on.  So I just think it's something the 14

village needs to keep an eye with the traffic on 15

Fuller.  You are a couple of blocks from the 16

main school and there's a lot of kids in the 17

area.  18

Any other comments or questions by 19

the commissioners?  08:25:44PM 20

(No response.)21

Can I hear a motion to approve the 22

7

text amendment application to build a secondary 1

access for a commercially-zoned property to a 2

residential-zoned district as requested by the 3

village of Hinsdale?  4

MR. PETERSON:  I'll motion.  5

MS. CRNOVICH:  Second.  6

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Deb? 7

MS. BRASELTON:  Aye.8

         MR. PETERSON:  Aye.9

MS. McMAHON:  Aye.08:26:02PM 10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.11

MS. CRNOVICH:  Aye.12

MR. WILLOBEE:  Aye.13

MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.                 14

                  (WHICH, were all of the    15

                   proceedings had, evidence 16

                   offered or received in the 17

                   above entitled cause.) 18

19

20

21

22

8

STATE OF ILLINOIS )1

                  )  ss:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )2

              I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified 3

Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the 4

County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby 5

certify that previous to the commencement of the 6

examination and testimony of the various 7

witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to 8

testify the truth in relation to the matters 9

pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by 10

said witnesses was reduced to writing by means 11

of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into 12

typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a 13

true, correct and complete transcript of my 14

shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.15

              IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have 16

hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 17

seal this 15th day of May, A.D. 2017.  18

19

                       _________________________20

                       KATHLEEN W. BONO,

                       C.S.R. No. 84-1423,21

                       Notary Public, DuPage County

                        22
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1

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
            ) ss:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )

         BEFORE THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION

In the Matter of:          )
                           )
                           )
Text Amendment to          )
Section 5-105(C),          )
Case No. A-08-2017.        )

         REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS had and testimony

taken at the hearing of the above-entitled

matter before the Hinsdale Plan Commission, at

19 East Chicago Avenue, Hinsdale, Illinois, on

May 10, 2017, at the hour of 7:30 p.m.

     BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

         MR. STEPHEN CASHMAN, Chairman;

         MS. LAURIE McMAHON, Member;

         MS. DEBRA BRASELTON, Member;

         MS. ANNA FIASCONE, Member;

         MR. SCOTT PETERSON, Member;

         MS. JULIE CRNOVICH, Member; and

         MR. MARK WILLOBEE, Member.
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2

      ALSO PRESENT:1

         MR. ROBB McGINNIS, Director of      2

             Community Development;

3

         MR. CHAN YU, Village Planner and 

             Petitioner.4

________________________________________________

5

         CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Case A-08-2017, 6

village of Hinsdale again.  Text amendment to 7

Section 5-105(C) to allow educational services 8

with a special use permit in the B-2 central 9

business district but not on the first floor of 08:26:22PM 10

any structure in B-2 and in the B-3 general 11

business district.12

                       (Mr. Yu was previously 13

                        administered the oath.)  14

MR. YU:  So essentially this is a 15

request by the village of Hinsdale but it was a 16

recommendation by the board because of the way 17

the zoning code is laid out for any type of 18

educational or classes, it really needs to be 19

specific.  08:27:00PM 20

So, for example, TinkRworks, we had 21

TinkRworks, we have music schools.  The way the 22

3

zoning code reads right now it needs to specify 1

exactly what type of class is being offered and 2

so rather than the board and the plan commission 3

review and change the code through a text 4

amendment for every type of class that's being 5

held, this request would allow some flexibility 6

but also as a special use permit prevent any 7

unintended consequences for a broader but a more 8

detailed review process for a business that will 9

offer a class.  08:27:48PM 10

MS. McMAHON:  What about B-1?  Is that 11

already in or are we excluding that?  You are 12

talking about B-2 and B-3, but I'm not sure are 13

there things in educational services already in 14

B-1?15

MR. YU:  So for attachment 2 we looked 16

at the definition of the purposes of B-1, B-2 17

and B-3, and we thought that B-2 and B-3 would 18

be a better fit for classes.19

MS. McMAHON:  For classes?  08:28:26PM 20

MS. YU:  Right.21

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Where are B-1s in 22

4

the village examples?  Would Grant Square be 1

one?  2

MR. YU:  So the last page of the packet 3

we have B-2 and B-3 called out on the zoning 4

map.5

MS. McMAHON:  So along Chestnut, those 6

buildings down there, I can't read what that -- 7

it looks like it's a B-1.  8

MR. YU:  The two colored blues are the 9

B-2 and B-3.  08:28:56PM 10

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Chan, what would be 11

an example of B-1?12

MR. McGINNIS:  Grant Square.  13

MS. McMAHON:  So those kind of 14

professional/medical buildings on Chestnut, 15

those are B-2s?  16

MR. YU:  I think those are B-3s, I 17

believe.18

MS. McMAHON:  I'm thinking where we had 19

that application recently for the tutoring and 08:29:32PM 20

that was in one of those buildings.  21

MR. YU:  Actually, that was in the O-2 22

5

district.1

MS. BRASELTON:  There's not a lot of 2

B-1.3

MR. McGINNIS:  Right now you have some 4

B-1 up at Gateway, Grant Square.  Along Chestnut 5

up here that's O-2.6

         MS. McMAHON:  So B-1 is basically the 7

two shopping centers. 8

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Basically Grant 9

Square and down there.  (Indicating.)  08:30:40PM 10

MS. McMAHON:  Okay.    11

MR. YU:  So for me in the narrative for 12

the B-1 what really stuck out to me was the 13

first sentence.  It says, Specifically, the B-1 14

community business district is intended to serve 15

the everyday shopping needs of village residents 16

as well as providing opportunities for specialty 17

shops attractive to wider suburban residential 18

community around the village.  19

So that's what indicated to me it's 08:31:06PM 20

more for retail, everyday shopping-type uses 21

rather than the two and three office use.22
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6

MS. McMAHON:  Basically this is sort of 1

a new catchall category for all these various 2

types of educational services?  3

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  So they will have to 4

come to us, notification of the neighbors.  So I 5

like the approach.  That way if it's a use that 6

the neighbors felt was incompatible for any 7

reason they could speak up and we could hear 8

them.  Somebody is always going to have to come 9

through the plan commission but all the second 08:31:50PM 10

floor areas in downtown are perfect for the 11

educational-type uses.  It's hard to have retail 12

on the second level.  It's walking distance from 13

middle school and transit.  14

Any other questions or comments 15

about the text amendment application for 16

educational services in B-2, B-3?  17

(No response.)18

Hearing none, may I have a motion 19

to approve the text amendment application as 08:32:28PM 20

submitted?21

MS. McMAHON:  So moved.  22

7

MS. FIASCONE:  Second.  1

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Anna? 2

MS. FIASCONE:  Aye.3

MR. WILLOBEE:  Aye.4

MS. CRNOVICH:  Aye.5

CHAIRMAN CASHMAN:  Aye.6

MS. McMAHON:  Aye.7

MR. PETERSON:  Aye.8

MS. BRASELTON:  Aye.9

                  (WHICH, were all of the    10

                   proceedings had, evidence 11

                   offered or received in the 12

                   above entitled cause.) 13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

8

STATE OF ILLINOIS )1

                  )  ss:

COUNTY OF DU PAGE )2

              I, KATHLEEN W. BONO, Certified 3

Shorthand Reporter, Notary Public in and for the 4

County DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby 5

certify that previous to the commencement of the 6

examination and testimony of the various 7

witnesses herein, they were duly sworn by me to 8

testify the truth in relation to the matters 9

pertaining hereto; that the testimony given by 10

said witnesses was reduced to writing by means 11

of shorthand and thereafter transcribed into 12

typewritten form; and that the foregoing is a 13

true, correct and complete transcript of my 14

shorthand notes so taken aforesaid.15

              IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have 16

hereunto set my hand and affixed my notarial 17

seal this 15th day of May, A.D. 2017.  18

19

                       _________________________20

                       KATHLEEN W. BONO,

                       C.S.R. No. 84-1423,21

                       Notary Public, DuPage County

                  22
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HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
RE:  Case A-16-2017 – Applicant: Community Consolidated School District 181 and Village of Hinsdale 

(application address:  100 S. Garfield Ave.) 
 
Request: Major Adjustment to approved Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for a Parking Deck for the New 

Hinsdale Middle School (Case A-41-2016)          
 
DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW:   May 10, 2017  
 
DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1

ST
 READING:  June 13, 2017 

 
 

 
 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

I.  FINDINGS 
 
1. The PC heard testimony from the co-applicants, Community Consolidated School District 181 (CCSD) and Village 

of Hinsdale, for the proposed parking deck for the new Hinsdale Middle School (HMS), at 100 S. Garfield Ave. in the 
IB Institutional Building District. Ms. Kathleen Gargano, Village Manager, reviewed a brief history of the entitlement 
process from the new HMS with a surface parking lot to the current joint application with the CCSD for a parking 
deck. The Village Manager also reviewed the three elements the Board of Trustees (BOT) requested the Plan 
Commission (PC) to consider when they referred the application to the PC: (1) stair structure (enclosed or open 
plan), (2) parking deck landscaping options A and B, and (3) lower level ADA parking space (3 spaces) relocation to 
the northeast corner with new accessible path and door. 

 
2. Mr. Brian Kronewitter, (project architect) reviewed the 2-level open parking deck, which allows natural daylight into 

both levels as well as ventilation. He reviewed the features of the parking deck including: 133 parking spaces on the 
upper level and 186 on the lower level, main access stairs at the northeast corner and smaller access stairs at the 
northwest corner. He also had the brick and precast materials of the parking deck displayed and reviewed that the 
lighting will reflect the existing lights on the subject property and be Code compliant.  

 
3. Mr. John Helfrich (project engineer), reviewed the landscape plan around the perimeter of the parking deck (raised 

planters on the south and west side) as well as the islands on the upper deck. He illustrated the main difference 
between options A and B (Attachment 1) is that A better hides the columns and openings with more screening.  

 
4.      A Plan Commissioner expressed that getting light into the parking deck would be a good thing, and that lighting is 

more important than screening on that particular side of the deck since it doesn’t face the street (interior side yard). 
For this reason, in addition to a better open feeling, the PC in general preferred option B. John and Brian added that 
planter boxes on the upper level wall could also be installed.  

 
5. A Plan Commissioner asked the applicant to review the vehicular and pedestrian access of the site plan. John 

explained that the primary access is located in the northeast corner, which is a two-way access from Garfield 
Avenue. The Second Street access is one-way, and drivers leaving the parking deck will see a right turn only sign. 
John reviewed that traffic studies for this plan is well within the acceptable range. The ADA spaces will be 
accessible in and out onto the sidewalk without having to go through the stair structure. It was clarified that the 5 
ADA spaces on the upper level are near the school entry at the northwest corner.    

 
 The circulation of traffic during school hours is from Second Street onto the upper deck while access into the upper 

deck from Garfield will be closed during drop off and pick up times. Drivers will be able to turn left or right when 
exiting the upper deck onto Garfield.  

 
6. A Plan Commissioner asked the applicant for the height of the stair structure. Brian acknowledged that the final 

design and engineering grades are still in process, however, most likely the top of the stair structure parapet will be 
in the 24 to 26 feet range. In terms of the length and width of the stair structure, Brian clarified that it’s their intent to 
build it as small as possible while meeting the ADA and building codes. Another Plan Commissioner expressed that 
the stone around the structure may be attributing to the bulky appearance. Brian explained the precast structure is a 
factor of economy (the budget submitted to the Village 4-months ago reflected a precast structure) and the physical 



limitations of precast, limits the size and location of openings. A Plan Commissioner asked if there could be brick 
added to the stair structure to blend in with the school’s brick. Brian agreed to submit a rendering of the stair 
structure with brick for consideration (Attachment 2).  

 
7. A Plan Commissioner expressed concern for the safety of the students and parking deck users since it is partially 

enclosed. Brian replied that panic buttons inside parking deck stairwells is common practice, and is most likely what 
he would recommend.   

 
8. The public meeting was notified by publication in the Hinsdalean on April 20, 2017, 250’ certified mailing and 

signage on the subject property. There was no one from the audience who commented at the meeting on May 10, 
2017.  

 
 
 

II. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed major adjustment to an exterior appearance and site 
plan as submitted, supporting the landscape option B (Attachment 1), and with the condition the applicant submit a 
rendering of the stair structure with brick (Attachment 2) and planter boxes for the Board to consider, the Village of 
Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of six (6) “Ayes,”, one (1) “abstained,” and two (2) “Absent,” recommends that 
the President and Board of Trustees approve the major adjustment application as submitted. 
 
 
 
 
THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By:  ________________________________ 

                               
Chairman 

                          
                          Dated this __________ day of ____________________, 2017.   



Attachment 1



Attachment 2



Attachment 2



Attachment 2



HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
RE:  Case A-07-2017 – Applicant: Village of Hinsdale 
 
Request: Text Amendment to Prohibit a Secondary Access to or from a Commercially Zoned Property into a 

Residentially Zoned District           
 
DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW:   May 10, 2017  
 
DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1

ST
 READING:  June 13, 2017 

 
 

 
 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

I.  FINDINGS 
 
1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant (Village of Hinsdale) for the proposed text amendment to Zoning Code 

Section 9-104 to prohibit a secondary access to or from a commercially zoned property into a residentially zoned 
District. Staff reviewed that the Village application was in result to the concerns voiced by the residents at a 
previous public meeting (Case A-15-2016) when a commercial property requested to create a secondary access 
onto a residential street. Many residents expressed concerns over the increase of vehicular traffic and its impact to 
the general safety of the residential neighborhood.  
 

2. The PC was unanimously supportive for the request, and commented that it is a great idea. The PC also recalled 
the concerns by the residents and believes this will prevent similar situations in the future. 

 
 

3. This application affects the Village in general and not a specific subject property. Thus, the public hearing was 
notified by publication in the Hinsdalean on April 20, 2017 (without the typical 250’ mailing and signage based on a 
specific subject property). There was no one from the audience who commented during the Plan Commission public 
hearing on May 10, 2017.  

     

   
 

II. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed text amendment application as submitted, the Village of 
Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of seven (7) “Ayes,” and two (2) “Absent,” recommends that the President 
and Board of Trustees approve the text amendment application as submitted. 
 
 
 
 
THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By:  ________________________________ 

                               
Chairman 

                          
                          Dated this __________ day of ____________________, 2017.   



HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
RE:  Case A-08-2017 – Applicant: Village of Hinsdale 
 
Request: Text Amendment to include Educational Services as a Special Use (Section 5-105(C)) in the B-2 (but not 

on the 1
st

 floor) and B-3 Districts          
 
DATE OF PLAN COMMISSION (PC) REVIEW:   May 10, 2017  
 
DATE OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES 1

ST
 READING:  June 13, 2017 

 
 

 
 

FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
 

I.  FINDINGS 
 
1. The PC heard testimony from the applicant (Village of Hinsdale) for the proposed text amendment to Zoning Code 

Section 5-105(C) to include Educational Services with a Special Use Permit in the B-2 District, but not on the first 
floor of any structure in the B-2 District, and B-3 District. Staff reviewed that this was recommended by the Board of 
Trustees since musical tutoring services is the only educational service option in the business districts; and less 
intense educational service uses would require a text amendment based on each class description.   
 

2. A Plan Commissioner asked why the Village is excluding the B-1 District in the application. Staff explained the B-1 
District was excluded based on the Business District definitions per Section 5-101 (and referenced Attachment 2 in 
the application packet). Per the Code, “the B-1 community business district is intended to serve the everyday 
shopping needs of village residents as well as to provide opportunities for specialty shops attractive to wider 
suburban residential community around the village.” To that end, staff believes the intent of the B-1 District is more 
for retail uses versus office uses.  There were no additional questions by the Plan Commission.   
 

3. The PC Chair expressed that he supports the special use permit approach. For example, a special use permit 
application requires a notification to the neighbors, so that if they felt the request is incompatible for any reason, 
they could reflect their concerns to the PC and subsequently to the Board.  

 
4.  This application affects the Village in general and not a specific subject property. Thus, the public hearing was 

notified by publication in the Hinsdalean on April 20, 2017 (without the typical 250’ mailing and signage based on a 
specific subject property). There was no one from the audience who commented during the Plan Commission public 
hearing on May 10, 2017.  

     

   
 

II. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Following a motion to recommend approval of the proposed text amendment application as submitted, the Village of 
Hinsdale Plan Commission, on a vote of seven (7) “Ayes,” and two (2) “Absent,” recommends that the President 
and Board of Trustees approve the text amendment application as submitted. 
 
 
 
 
THE HINSDALE PLAN COMMISSION By:  ________________________________ 

                               
Chairman 

                          
                          Dated this __________ day of ____________________, 2017.   
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   June 14, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  Public Hearing for Special Use Permit Amendment Application to allow earlier Physical 

Fitness Class Start Time at 5 AM (vs. current 6 AM)  
Shred415 Hinsdale, LLC - 230 E. Ogden Avenue – Case A-14-2017 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

This Plan Commission (PC) Agenda item was scheduled for a Public Hearing for the June 14, 2017, 

meeting. This is a Special Use amendment application by Shred415, to permit classes starting at 5 AM 

each day. Per Section 11-602, a Special Use Permit may be amended pursuant to the procedures, 

standards and limitations subject for its original approval.  On September 16, 2014, the applicant, 

Shred415, was granted a Special Use Permit to operate a physical fitness facility at 230 E. Ogden Avenue 

subject to four (4) conditions. One of which is no classes shall take place prior to 6 AM on any day.   

Request and Analysis 

Shred415, represented by Peter Coules, is requesting an amendment to an approved Special Use Permit 

condition, per Ordinance O2014-31. Per the approved Special Use Permit on September 16, 2014, there 

are four (4) conditions:  (1) No classes shall take place prior to 6 AM on any day; (2) There will be no 

parking within 20 feet of a single-family structure prior to 8 AM on any day; (3) Conformance by the 

applicant and patrons with the parking exhibit identifying the specific parking spaces that will be 

unavailable prior to 8 AM on any day (Attachment 1, Exhibit A); and (4) Installation of a new, solid, 8-

foot privacy fence along the entire south property line. 

The sole request for this application is to amend the above first condition, to permit classes to start at 5 

AM each day rather than 6 AM.  Per the applicant, the work out studio is sound proof and does not 

disturb the other tenants above, below and to the south of 230 E. Ogden Avenue. The subject property 

is located in the B-3 General Business District, however, abuts the R-4 Single Family Residential District 

to the south. It should be noted that the initial Special Use Permit application requested for the 5 AM 

start time, but was opposed by the PC and Board due to auto noise concerns to the bordering residential 

neighborhood. Per the attached July 9, 2014, PC public hearing transcript, some concerns included: 

employee arrival time prior to 5 AM, parking enforcement issues, the short distance from the parking 

area to the residential neighborhood and the volume of cars (based on the max. of 26 class participants 

plus 4-6 staff members).   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

The applicant has attached correspondence via email, in support of the current application from the 

residence immediately adjacent to the subject property at 804 N. Elm Street and 805 N. Elm Street 

(Attachment 1, Exhibit B).  This was originally requested by the PC at the July 9, 2014, Public Hearing. 

Shred415 has also included a list of present clients that have requested for an earlier 5 AM start time 

(Attachment 1, Exhibit C).     

Process 

Within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of the public hearing, the PC shall transmit to the 

BOT its recommendation in the form specified by subsection 11-103(H). The failure of the PC to act 

within forty five (45) days following the conclusion of such hearing, or such further time to which the 

applicant may agree, shall be deemed a recommendation for the approval of the proposed amendment 

as submitted. 

 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Special Use Permit, Plan Commission Application and Exhibits  
Attachment 2 -  Plan Commission Initial Special Use Public Hearing Transcript (July 9, 2014) 
Attachment 3 -  Zoning Map and Location of 230 E. Ogden Avenue 
Attachment 4 -  Aerial Parcel Map of 230 E. Ogden Avenue 
Attachment 5 -  Nearby Residence in Support for Amendment Request Map 
Attachment 6 -  Updated Neighbor Support Emails 
 

 
 
 
 
 

http://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?ft=10&find=11-103
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Attachment 3: Village of Hinsdale Zoning Map and Project Location 
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Attachment п:   Aerial Parcel Map of 230 E. Ogden Ave.  
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              MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   June 14, 2017 

TO:   Chairman Cashman and Plan Commissioners 

CC:  Kathleen A. Gargano, Village Manager 
Robb McGinnis, Director of Community Development/Building Commissioner 

   
FROM:   Chan Yu, Village Planner  
 
RE:  722-724 N. York Rd. – Hinsdale Animal Hospital  

Exterior Appearance and Site Plan for a New Pet Hospital  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Summary 

The Village of Hinsdale has received an Exterior Appearance and Site Plan review application from 

Anthony Kremer, of Hinsdale Animal Hospital, requesting approval to construct a new pet hospital at 

722-724 N. York Road in the B-1 Community Business District.  

At the March 22, 2017, Board of Trustees (BOT) meeting, the Board approved a Special Use permit for 

the applicant to operate a pet hospital with boarding kennel and grooming services at 722-724 N. York 

Road. The applicant has requested 5 variations to construct the new animal hospital. On April 19, 2017, 

the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) unanimously approved 3 of the 5 variations, and recommended 

approval for the remaining 2, which requires approval by the BOT.  The 2 variations will be discussed at 

the June 13, 2017, Board meeting.  

Request and Analysis 

The facilities of the new building reflect the uses of a pet hospital, boarding kennel and grooming 

services. For example, the first floor plan features 10 exam rooms, treatment and play areas, and 

boarding space. The second floor plan will include a large treatment area, luxury suites, training room, X-

ray and surgery rooms.   

The site plan reflects the building footprint and setbacks after the conclusion of the ZBA (variation) 

meetings. Of note, the proposed building footprint illustrates that the new building is smaller than the 

existing building footprint, and that the front yard setback will remain the same. The new exterior 

appearance elevation illustrations also show the proposed building with the approved variations by the 

ZBA.  On April 19, 2017, the ZBA unanimously approved: 

1. An allowable building height of 35 feet as opposed to 30 feet. 
2. To allow a front yard setback of 15 feet (modified to 17 feet) as opposed to 25 feet. 
3. To permit off-street parking in a required front yard. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
              MEMORANDUM 

The 2 additional variations, which the Board has final authority over, were recommended for approval 

by the ZBA. This includes to (1) allow a floor area ratio of .40 as opposed to the maximum floor area 

ratio of .35, and (2) waive the 10’ landscape buffer requirement. Following the conclusion of the public 

hearing, the ZBA indicated its approval of the requested variations with one modification for a reduced 

front yard setback, which was approved at 17’ instead of the requested 15’.  

The exterior appearance exhibits show all four elevations of the new building, with various height 

references. The elevation sheet in particular, has an Elevation Key that defines the elements and 

features used for the building. For example, brick veneer, cast stone and metal copings with color 

definitions. The application also includes the tree preservation and landscape plan.  

Process 

Pursuant to Section 11-606, the Chairman of the Plan Commission (PC) shall at the public meeting on the 

application for exterior appearance review allow any member of the general public to offer relevant, 

material and nonrepetitive comment on the application. Within 60 days following the conclusion of the 

public meeting, the PC shall transmit to the BOT its recommendation, in the form specified in subsection 

11-103(H) of this article, recommending either approval or disapproval of the exterior appearance and 

site plan based on the standards set forth in subsection F1 of this Section 11-606. 

 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 -  Plan Commission Exterior Appearance/Site Plan Application and Exhibits  
Attachment 2 -  Aerial Parcel Map of 722-724 N. York Road 
Attachment 3 -  Birds Eye View of 722-724 N. York Road 
Attachment 4 -  ZBA Findings of Fact and Recommendations 
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FINDINGS OF FACT AND RECOMMENDATION OF THE 
VILLAGE OF HINSDALE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS TO 

THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

ZONING CASE NO. V-02-17 
 
APPLICATION: For Certain Variations Relative to Construction of a new 

Commercial Building for use as an Animal Hospital at 
724 N. York Road, Hinsdale, Illinois. 

 
PETITIONER:  Anthony Kremer, d/b/a Hinsdale Animal Hospital 
 
PROPERTY OWNER: Purchase of the Property by Petitioner is pending 
 
PROPERTY:  724 N. York Road, Hinsdale, Illinois (the “Property”) 
 
HEARING HELD: Wednesday, April 19, 2017, at 6:30 p.m. in Memorial Hall, 

in the Memorial Building, 19 East Chicago Avenue, 
Hinsdale, Illinois. 

 
SUMMARY OF REQUEST AND RECOMMENDATION:  The Village of Hinsdale has 
received a request from Anthony Kremer, d/b/a Hinsdale Animal Hospital (the 
“Applicant”) for certain variations relative to the proposed construction of a new 
commercial building (the “New Building”) to be used as an animal hospital on the 
Property, located in the B-1 Community Business Zoning District at 724 N. York Road 
(the “Application”). The Applicant has requested variations to the following Sections of 
the Zoning Code of the Village of Hinsdale (“Zoning Code”): 
 

 Section 5-110 of the Zoning Code to allow a floor area ratio of .40 as opposed to 
the maximum floor area ratio of .35 allowed in a B-1 District;  

 Section 9-107.A.1. to waive the ten (10) foot parking lot landscape buffer 
requirement. 

Collectively, these two (2) variation requests shall be referred to herein as the 
“Requested Variations.” 

In addition to the Requested Variations, three (3) additional variations over which the 
Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of Hinsdale (“ZBA”) has final authority were 
sought and approved by the ZBA. Those variations were to 1) Section 5-110.A.1.a. of 
the Zoning Code, to allow a height of thirty-five (35) feet as opposed to the thirty (30) 
feet allowed in a B-1 District; 2) Section 5-110.C.1.a. of the Zoning Code, to allow a 
front yard setback of fifteen (15) feet (this was modified to seventeen (17) feet by the 
ZBA at the Public Hearing) as opposed to the twenty-five (25) feet required in a B-1 
District; and 3) Section 9-104.G.2.b. to permit off-street parking in a required front yard 
(together, these three (3) variations are the “Additional Variations” and, collectively with 
the Requested Variations, the “Variations”). The approval by the ZBA of the Additional 
Variations is detailed in a separate Final Decision of the ZBA.  
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On April 19, 2017, following the conclusion of the public hearing on this matter, the 
Zoning Board of Appeals of the Village of Hinsdale (“ZBA”) recommended approval of 
the Requested Variations on a vote of five (5) in favor, and zero (0) opposed. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  At the combined public hearing on the Variations, the Applicant 
and a representative of the Applicant testified in support of the Variations. They 
described the challenges posed by the unusual shape of the Property. They had 
originally proposed preserving certain walls of the existing building, but the Village 
Board had indicated a preference for a new building on the Property. The height 
variation relates only to a tower that was incorporated into the building design based on 
the Board of Trustee’s request for an element that would create architectural interest. 
The requested front yard setback is similar to that of the existing building and is driven 
by the odd shape of the Property. The footprint of the new proposed building is actually 
slightly smaller than that of the existing building. They are doing their best to utilize the 
odd-shaped lot. While the Applicant is requesting a small floor area ratio variation, the 
proposed floor area ratio would be compliant if the Property had the same zoning 
designation as the adjacent lot; the Property had been rezoned by a previous owner. 
The possibility of barking dogs was discussed; the building will be designed in the back 
half to limit the ability of dogs to be heard in the front half of the building and outside. 
The closest neighbors will be further away from the building at the Property than they 
are at the present site of the animal hospital. They are proud of their record on being a 
good neighbor and in designing buildings that minimize the noise heard outside. The 
setback for the parking lot is designed to match the fifteen (15) foot building set back 
and to maximum use of the lot for parking purposes. The elimination of the required 
landscape buffer is driven by the odd shape of the lot and will allow a double-loaded 
parking aisle to run to the back of the Property. The impact of traffic is lessened by the 
unique hours of the proposed hospital (7:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.). Required parking is 
forty-four (44) spaces and the proposed parking at this point is forty-five (45) spaces. 
 
There being no further questions or members of the public wishing to speak on the 
application, the Public Hearing was closed.  
 
The ZBA then deliberated and, following motions and seconds on each of the 
Requested Variations, recommended approval of the Requested Variations on a vote of 
five (5) in favor, and zero (0) opposed. 
 
FINDINGS:  The following are the Findings of the ZBA relative to the Requested 
Variations: 
 
1. General Standard:  Carrying out the strict letter of the provisions of the Zoning Code 
would create a particular hardship or a practical difficulty, based on satisfaction of the 
standards below: 
 
2. Unique Physical Condition:  The Subject Property is exceptional as compared to 
other lots subject to the same provision by reason of a unique physical condition, 
including presence of an existing use, structure, or sign, whether conforming or 
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nonconforming; irregular or substandard shape or size; exceptional topographical 
features; or other extraordinary physical conditions peculiar to and inherent in the 
subject property that amount to more than a mere inconvenience to the owner and that 
relate to or arise out of the lot rather than the personal situation of the current owner of 
the lot. All members agree that the Property is an irregular, oddly-shaped lot that 
presents difficult and unique conditions and challenges relative to creating a viable 
commercial use with parking on the site. The odd-shape is a primary driving force 
behind the various Variations requested. 
 
3. Not Self-Created:  The unique physical condition is not the result of any action or 
inaction of the owner, or of the owner's predecessors in title and known to the owner 
prior to acquisition of the subject property, and existed at the time of the enactment of 
the provisions from which a variation is sought or was created by natural forces or was 
the result of governmental action, other than the adoption of the Zoning Code, for which 
no compensation was paid. The irregularity of the shape of the Property is not self-
created. The need for certain variations, including the floor area ratio variation, was 
caused by the rezoning of the Property by a previous owner, which resulted in more 
restrictive bulk standards. 
 
4. Denied Substantial Rights:  The carrying out of the strict letter of the provisions from 
which a variation is sought would deprive the owner of the subject property of 
substantial rights commonly enjoyed by owners of other lots subject to the same 
provision. In this case, requiring the Applicant to conform to the provisions of the Zoning 
Code for which relief is sought would severely limit the ability to, among other things, 
provide adequate on-site parking or to make commercially viable use of the Property. 
 
5. Not Merely Special Privilege:  The alleged hardship or difficulty is not merely the 
inability of the owner or occupant to enjoy some special privilege or additional right not 
available to owners or occupants of other lots subject to the same provision, nor merely 
an inability to make more money from the use of the subject property; provided, 
however, that where the standards herein set out exist, the existence of an economic 
hardship shall not be a prerequisite to the grant of an authorized variation. The ability to 
maintain adequate on-site parking and to site a new commercial building on this oddly-
shaped lot are not special privileges. The Variations are not sought to make more 
money from use of the Property, but are instead sought in order to make a viable 
commercial use of the Property. The Property, due to its rezoning by a previous owner, 
has a different floor area requirement than the adjacent properties with a different 
zoning designation.   
 
6. Code And Plan Purposes:  The variation would not result in a use or development of 
the subject property that would not be in harmony with the general and specific 
purposes for which the Zoning Code and the provision from which a variation is sought 
were enacted or the general purpose and intent of the official comprehensive plan. The 
ZBA found this standard to have been met. 
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7. Essential Character Of The Area:  The variation would not result in a use or 
development on the subject property that: 
 
(a) would be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to the 
enjoyment, use, development, or value of property or improvements permitted in the 
vicinity; or (b) would materially impair an adequate supply of light and air to the 
properties and improvements in the vicinity; or (c) would substantially increase 
congestion in the public streets due to traffic or parking; or (d) would unduly increase 
the danger of flood or fire; or (e) would unduly tax public utilities and facilities in the 
area; or (f) would endanger the public health or safety. 
 
The granting of the Variations will allow the development of the oddly-shaped Property 
with a brand new commercial building that is visually interesting, commercially viable, 
and that has adequate on-site parking. The impacts on adjacent properties will be 
minimal; animal noise will be minimized by the noise-deadening design of the back half 
of the building. Traffic impacts would be minimal, as visitors will be spread out over the 
extended hours of the facility, and on weekends. On-site parking is anticipated to be 
adequate to serve the facility. The proposed building will replace an existing building, 
and utilities are already in place. The Variations will not endanger the public health or 
safety. 
 
8. No Other Remedy: There is no means other than the requested variations by which 
the alleged hardship or difficulty can be avoided or remedied to a degree sufficient to 
permit a reasonable use of the subject property. This standard has been met. Without 
the Variations, the building would have to be significantly smaller and would be unable 
to meet parking requirements. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the Findings set forth above, the ZBA, by a vote of five (5) in favor and 
zero (0) opposed, recommends to the President and Board of Trustees that the 
following Requested Variations relative to the proposed construction of the New 
Building to be used as an animal hospital on the Property, located in the B-1 
Community Business Zoning District at 724 N. York Road, be GRANTED: 
 

 A Variation from Section 5-110 of the Zoning Code to allow a floor area 
ratio of .40 as opposed to the maximum floor area ratio of .35 allowed in a 
B-1 District;  

 A Variation from Section 9-107.A.1. to waive the ten (10) foot landscape 
buffer requirement. 
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Signed:  ___________________________________ 
      Robert Neiman, Chair 
      Zoning Board of Appeals 
      Village of Hinsdale 
 
 
    Date: _____________________________________ 
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